Public Document Pack

Ste¥Yenage

BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date: Monday, 9 February 2026
Time: 2.00pm,
Location: Council Chamber
Contact: Lee Waller 01438 242067
committees@stevenage.gov.uk

Members: Councillors: Lin Martin-Haugh (Chair), Lloyd Briscoe, Peter Clark,
Coleen DeFreitas, Alistair Gordon, Lynda Guy, Robin Parker CC,
Claire Parris, Ellie Plater, Tom Plater, Ceara Roopchand,
Loraine Rossati, Carolina Veres and Tom Wren

AGENDA
PART 1
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
To approve as a correct record of the minutes of the previous meeting held on 20
January 2026
3-6
3. LICENSING HEARINGS - PROCEDURES

To note the procedure for the hearing of licensing applications and reviews.
7-8

4, APPLICATION TO VARY THE SPECIFIED DESIGNATED PREMISES
SUPERVISOR OF BOROUGH WINES (FORMALLY THE OVAL WINES), 9 THE
OVAL, STEVENAGE, SG1 1HF
To determine an application for the Variation of Specified Designated Premises
Supervisor at Borough Wines (The Oval Wines), 9 The Oval, Stevenage, SG1 1HF
9-78

5. URGENT PART | BUSINESS
To consider any Part | business accepted by the Chair as urgent.

6. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider the following motions —

1. That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be



excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in paragraphs1 — 7 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by Local Government (Access to
Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

2. That Members consider the reasons for the following reports being in Part Il and
determine whether or not maintaining the exemption from disclosure of the information
contained therein outweighs the public interest in disclosure.

7. URGENT PART Il BUSINESS

To consider any Part Il business accepted by the Chair as urgent.

Agenda Published 30/01/26



Agenda Item 2

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE
MINUTES

Date: Tuesday, 20 January 2026
Time: 10.00am
Place: Council Chamber

Present: Councillors: Lin Martin-Haugh (Chair) Peter Clark, Coleen De Freitas,
Alistair Gordon and Lynda Guy

Start / End Start Time: 10.00am
Time: End Time: 10.17am

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lloyd Briscoe, Robin Parker,
Ellie Plater, Tom Plater, Ceara Roopchand, Carolina Veres and Tom Wren.

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

It was RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held
on 22 December 2025 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

3 LICENSING HEARINGS - PROCEDURES
It was RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference be noted.

4 CONSIDERATION OF FIVE TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES AT STEVENAGE
WINTER WONDERLAND, CAR PARK, STEVENAGE LEISURE PARK,
KINGSWAY, STEVENAGE, SG1 2UA

The Committee considered five objections to Temporary Event Notices (TENs) at
the Stevenage Winter Wonderland at Stevenage Leisure Park, Kingsway,
Stevenage.

The Council’s Licencing Officer introduced the report outlining the five TENs
submitted by the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS).

Members were advised that the event operated under a premises licence which
authorised licensable activities between 22 November to 10 January annually, which
included the sale of alcohol from 10:00am to 10:00pm.

The applicant sought to extend the operation beyond this period, covering four
weekends in late January and early February. It also included dates in the February
half term. These included:

1) 23 January to 25" January 2026

2) 30t January to 15t February 2026

1
Page 3



3) 6" February to 8" February 2026
4) 13t February to 15" February 2026
5) 17" February to 22" February 2026

The Chair then invited Environmental Health to present their case.

The Commercial Environmental Health Manager addressed the Committee and
confirmed that the objection was on the basis that the TENs submitted would
undermine the Licensing Objectives. If the event was to proceed in the absence of
the conditions, there would be limited enforceable control for the event.

Members noted that conditions attached to the existing premises licence do not
automatically apply to TENs, and that only the Licensing Authority may attach
conditions where a valid objection had been made.

The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions to the Commercial Environmental
Health Manager. There were none.

There being no representation from the Premises the Committees consideration was
limited to the TENs and communication form the licensing agent.

The Chair invited all parties to sum up.

The Licensing Officer confirmed that the Committee was responsible for reaching a
decision on the application, including whether the event should proceed, whether it
should proceed subject to conditions, or be refused through the issue of a counter
notice.

Environmental Health declined to provide a summary.

It was RESOLVED to permit the TENSs to proceed, subject to all of the Premises
Licence conditions with the exception of conditions 1, 2 and 3 in Annex 3 of the
Premises Licence Conditions.

REASON FOR DECISION

The Committee considered all written and oral representations, the Licensing
Objectives, the Council’s Licensing Policy and statutory guidance.

The Committee considered the applications from Environmental Health and noted
that they had no compliance concerns for the Premises, and did not consider the
event should be prevented from proceeding.

The Committee understood that the concerns raised in the objection were made to
ensure that for the extended period, the promotion of the Licensing Objectives were
achieved.

The Committee acknowledged that by imposing the Premises License Conditions,
this would be an appropriate way to promote the Licensing Objectives.

2
Page 4



CHAIR

URGENT PART | BUSINESS

There was no Urgent Part | Business.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

It was RESOLVED:

1. That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in
Paragraphs 1 — 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

2. That the reasons for the following reports being in Part Il were accepted, and
that the exemption from disclosure of the information contained therein outweighs
the public interest in disclosure.

URGENT PART Il BUSINESS

There was no Urgent Part Il Business.

3
Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 3

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE

HEARING OF LICENCE APPLICATIONS — PROCEDURE

The Committee will apply the following procedure when considering Liquor Licence
applications and Review applications to ensure adherence to the rules of natural
justice.

1. The Chair will introduce himself/herself and invite the other Committee
Members, the Licensing Officer(s), Legal Advisor, Committee Administrator,
Responsible Authority representatives, interested parties and the Premises
Licence Holder and any representative to introduce themselves.

2. The Licensing Officer will outline the reason for the hearing and report on the
facts of the case. Members of the Committee, the Responsible Authority
representatives, those who had submitted representations, and Premises
Licence Holder (and/or representative) may ask questions of the Licensing
Officer.

3. The Responsible Authority representatives may then state their case, calling
any witnesses.

4. With the Chair’s permission, Members of the Committee and the Premises
Licence Holder (and/or representative) may then ask questions of the
Responsible Authority representatives.

5. Those who have submitted representations may then state their case, calling
any witnesses.

6. With the Chair’s permission, Members of the Committee and the Premises
Licence Holder (and/or representative) may then ask questions of those who
have submitted representations.

7. The Premises Licence Holder (and/or representative) will state their case,
calling any witnesses they wish.

8. With the Chair’s permission, Members of the Committee, Responsible
Authority Representatives and those who have submitted representations

may then ask questions of the Premises Licence Holder (and/or
representative).

9. The Responsible Authority representatives are then invited to sum up.
10. Those who have submitted representations are then invited to sum up.

11. The Premises Licence Holder (and/or representative) is then invited to sum
up.

12. The Committee will retire to consider the matter and make its decision.

13. At the conclusion of its deliberations, the Committee will EITHER return to the
meeting to deliver its decision OR inform all parties of its decision in writing as
soon as possible after the meeting. In either event, reasons will be given for
the Committee’s decision.

Page 7



NOTES:

(1

(2)

(3)

EACH PARTY WILL BE AFFORDED A REASONABLE AMOUNT OF TIME
TO PRESENT THEIR CASE.

ALL PARTIES MAY ASK FOR CLARIFICATION OF ANY POINT AT ANY
TIME IN THE PROCEEDINGS.

THE COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL’S SOLICITOR WILL

BE PRESENT THROUGHOUT THE MEETING AND MAY ASK QUESTIONS
AT ANY TIME TO ASSIST THE COMMITTEE.

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

e

Part 1 — Release to Press S tevé/nag e

BOROUGH COUNCIL Agenda item:

Meeting Licensing Committee

Portfolio Area  Communities, Community Safety and
Equalities

Date ot February 2026

APPLICATION TO VARY THE SPECIFIED DESIGNATED PREMISES
SUPERVISOR OF BOROUGH WINES (FORMALLY THE OVAL WINES), 9 THE
OVAL, STEVENAGE, SG1 1HF

Authors Mary O'Sullivan | Ext. 2724
Lead Officers Julie Dwan | Ext. 2493

Contact Officer Mary O’Sullivan | Ext. 2724

1 PURPOSE

1.1 To determine an application for the Variation of Specified Designated
Premises Supervisor at Borough Wines (The Oval Wines), 9 The Oval,
Stevenage, SG1 1HF. Senior Licensing Officer Gillian Akroyd, on behalf of
Hertfordshire Constabulary, has made representations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee reviews the evidence presented by the responsible
authority and the applicant. The licensing authority must restrict its
consideration to the issue of crime and disorder and if it considers it
necessary, reject the application for this variation, or grant the variation.

Page 9



3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF APPLICATION

The current premises licence holder of Borough Wines, 9 The Oval,
Stevenage SG1 1HF, Mr Emrah Oruc, submitted through a licensing agent, an
application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor from Polat Hasan to
Emrah Oruc on 15t January 2026. A copy of the application and consent
form are attached at Appendix A.

On 12t January 2026 Senior Licensing Officer (SLO) Gillian Akroyd, submitted
a representation to this application stating that Mr E Oruc being the new
proposed DPS would undermine the crime prevention objective Section 37 (5)
Licensing Act 2003. A copy of the Police Objection notice is attached at
Appendix B and continuation notes at Appendix B1 and Appendix B2.

This application to vary the DPS was accepted as valid and duly made by the
Council on Monday 5™ January 2026.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Borough Wines (formerly Oval Wines) is located in the shopping precinct
at The Oval, Stevenage. It has a premises licence in place which authorises
the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises, Monday to Sunday
between the hours of 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs. A copy of the Premises
Licence and plan are attached at Appendix D

The Police applied to the Council for the review of the Premises Licence for
The Oval Wines on 25" October 2024 for failing to promote all four of the
licence objectives. The application for review was heard by the licensing
committee on 19" December 2024.

The committee during the review of the Premises licence accepted that there
was evidence of multiple incidents of breeches of licence including
supply/sales of illegall/illicit products, evidence of drugs paraphernalia and
residue of cocaine in various public and private areas of the premises.

The premises have failed to observe their licensing conditions attached to the
Premises Licence for The Oval Wines, predominantly Annex 2 Condition 1
which refers to the requirement for a digital CCTV system recording images
which will be retained in an unedited form for up to 30 days and which shall be
made available to any responsible authority upon request, however on multiple
occasions when Police have requested CCTV footage it has been unavailable.
The Designated Premises Supervisor at the time, Polat Hasan has also failed
to make himself available to Police.

Trading Standards officers have recently seized illegal items from these
premises. On two occasions Trading Standards Officer recovered illegal
products from The Oval Wines including tobacco pouches, a number of
cartons of cigarettes and a number of Viagra jellies, which can only be
obtained following a consultation with a pharmacist.

The proposed DPS and Premises Licence holder Mr Oruc identified himself on
CCTV footage as being present and gesturing known gang members who had
been seen armed with machetes and knives however, he had not previously

Page 10



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

412

identified himself as being a withess when Police had approached him at the
premises requesting CCTV footage as per the conditions of the premises
licence, nor did he call the Police at the time of the incident.

The decision of the committee at the review hearing on 19" December 2024
was to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. Notes and matters of fact
relating to the hearing can be found in the decision notice which is
attached at Appendix C. This decision is being appealed and due to be
heard at Stevenage Magistrates Court on 7" May 2026.

The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor, Mr Oruc who is also the
licence holder had applied to vary the DPS to himself with immediate effect on
17t December 2024. An objection was received by police on 23 December
as they believe the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated premises
supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The matter was
due to be heard by the licensing committee on 24" January 2025 however the
application was withdrawn by the applicant on 215t January 2025.

A second identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
21st January 2025. Again, an objection was received by police on 21st
January as they believe the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated premises
supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The matter was
due to be heard by the licensing committee on 17" February 2025 however
the application was withdrawn by the applicant on 14th February 2025.

This third identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was also received
on 14% February 2025. Again, an objection was received by police on 14th
February as they still believe that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The
matter was due to be heard by the licensing committee on 3™ March 2025
however the application was withdrawn by the applicant on 28" February
2025.

The fourth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was also received
on 28" February 2025. Again, an objection was received by Police on 29t
February 2025 as they still believe that the appointment of Mr Oruc as
designated premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention
objective. The matter was due to be heard on 27" March 2025 however the
application was withdrawn on 26" March 2025.

The fifth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was also received on
26t March 2025. Again, an objection was received by Police on 27" March
2025 as they still believe that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The
matter was due to be heard on 11t April 2025 however the application was
withdrawn on 9" April 2025.

Page 11



4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

The sixth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was also received
on 9™ April 2025. Again, an objection was received by Police on 10" April
2025 as they still believe that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The
matter was due to be heard on 215t May 2025 however the application was
withdrawn on 19" May 2025.

The seventh identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was also
received on 19" May 2025. Again, an objection was received by Police on 19t
May 2025 as they still believe that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The
matter was due to be heard on 8™ July 2025 however the application was
withdrawn on 7" July 2025.

The eighth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
7t July 2025. An objection was received by Police on 16™ July 2025 as they
still believed that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated premises
supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. The matter was
due to be heard on 18" August 2025 however the application was withdrawn
on 14t August 2025.

An application for a Minor Variation to the Premises Licence for The Oval
Wines was accepted which proposed to remove 4 conditions and add 16
additional conditions. On 15t August 2025 an Objection to this application was
received from Hertfordshire Police on the basis that it would fail to prevent
crime and disorder. Also on 15" August 2025, Hertfordshire County Councils
Trading Standards submitted an objection to this application on the basis that
it would fail to prevent crime and disorder and to fail to protect children from
harm. The Licensing Authority was satisfied that granting this minor variation
would, on balance, adversely affect the premises’ ability to promote all four of
the licensing objectives, therefore the application for a minor variation to the
premises licence for these premises was refused on 19" August 2025.

The ninth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
14t August 2025. An objection was received by Police on 27" August 2025 as
they still believed that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated premises
supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. This matter was
due to be heard on 22" September however the application was withdrawn on
19t September 2025.

The tenth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
19 September 2025. An objection was received by Police on 22" September
2025 as they still believed that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. This
matter was due to be heard on 25" November however the application was
withdrawn on 24" November 2025.

The eleventh identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
24" November 2025. An objection was received by Police on 4th December
2025 as they still believed that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated
premises supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective. This

Page 12



4.20

4.21

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

matter was due to be determined by committee on 5" January 2026 however
the application was withdrawn on 1t January 2026.

On 2" December the Appeal was due to be heard at Stevenage Magistrates
Court however it was adjourned and relisted for 71" and 8" May 2026 to allow
sufficient court time for this matter to be decided upon by the magistrates.

The twelfth identical application to vary the DPS to Mr Oruc was received on
1st January 2026. An objection was received by Police on 12t January 2026
as they still believed that the appointment of Mr Oruc as designated premises
supervisor, would undermine the crime prevention objective which is now
brought before this committee for consideration.

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

Representations to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor can only be
made by the Police, who may object to the designation of the new DPS where
in exceptional circumstances, they believe that the appointment would
undermine the crime prevention objective.

An additional statement was provided by Police on 8" August 2025, following
a complaint by a local resident in respect of the premises selling alcohol to a
drunk person contrary to Section 141 Licensing Act 2003. This and a second
exhibiting statement is attached at Appendix F.

An additional E Mail was submitted on 9t September 2025 from the SLO
Akroyd regarding requests from Police requiring CCTV from Mr Oruc which
had not be provided and is attached at Appendix G1.

PCSO Brickett provided a statement outlining a visit to obtain CCTV from Oval
Wines on 9" September 2025 which is attached at Appendix G2.

SLO Akroyd sent a warning letter dated 16.09.25 to Mr Oruc following the
failure to provide CCTV to Police and is attached at Appendix G3.

PC Brown provided a statement outlining a visit to obtain CCTV from Oval
Wines on 213t August 2025 which is attached at Appendix G4

PCSO Davison provided a statement summarising the viewing of CCTV
provided to Police in October 2025 relating to the date and time of 11t July
2025 between 18:00-19:00hrs. Of the 36 files provided for that hour there were
44 minutes of footage missing. Attached at Appendix G5

Page 13



5.8

6.1

6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.4
6.4.1

BD1
BD2
BD3

8.1

PC Pickering provided a statement regarding an altercation at the premises
between two drunk males on 9" September 2025 which is attached at
Appendix H

IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

There are no financial or resource implications arising from the content of this
report.

Legal Implications

The Committee is advised that paragraphs 4.69 - 4.71 of Section 182
Guidance for the Licensing Act 2003 describe the powers of a Licensing
Authority on the determination of an application the decision of the committee
is subject to appeal at Magistrates Court.

The committee under Section 39 (89) Licensing Act 2003, must if it considers
necessary, reject the application.

The committee must under Section 39 (90) notify the applicant, police and new
DPS and must give reasons for its decision.

Policy Implications
There are no policy implications.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

Any decision by the Committee is based on evidence before it at the meeting;
there are no equalities and diversity implications.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Licensing Act 2003 (Section 39 Determination of Section 37 Application)
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
Statement of Licensing Policy 2025-2030

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

On 12t February 2025, the Police forwarded an email from PC Steven Hill, who
had taken a statement from an ex-employee of Oval Wines in relation to Mr
Emrah Oruc, owner and premises licence holder of Oval Wines and attached at
Appendix E.

Page 14


https://www.stevenage.gov.uk/documents/licensing/statement-of-licensing-policy-2025-2030.pdf

©

Mmoo W >

G2
G3
G4
G5

APPENDICES

Application to vary Designated Premises Supervisor

Police Objection to Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor

Decision Notice — Revocation of Premises Licences for Oval Wines
Current Premises Licence and Plan

Supplementary Information — Witness statement from ex-employee.
Witness Statement from a Local resident referred to in the Police Objection
to the application to Vary the DPS.

Supplementary Information — E mail from Police relating to requests for CCV
Statement re No CCTV — PCSO Brickett 09.09.25

Police Warning Letter re No CCTV 16.09.25
Statement re No CCTV — PC Brown 21.08.25
Statement re CCTV Viewing PCSO Davison - 44minutes missing 11.07.25

Statement re an Altercation at the Premises Between Two Drunk Males — PC
Pickering 09.09.25

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Stevenage For help contact
Application to vary a premises licence to specify an licensing@stevenage.gov.uk

S te%nage individual as designated premises supervisor Telephone: 01438 242908
BOROUGH COUNCIL | Licensing Act 2003

* required information

Section 1 of 4

You can save the form at any time and resume it later, You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

This is the unique reference for this

System reference Not Currently In Use application generated by the system.

Your reference The Oval You can ppt V\_fhat you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or

(¢ Yes C No work for.

Applicant Details

* First name [-

* Family name e
Main telephone number 1_ Include country code.

Other telephone number

[] Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

(" Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

(¢ Applying as an individual

Page 17

rinter and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Address

* Building number or name ‘.

District ‘

* City or town -

County or administrative area ‘

* Postcode -

* Country ‘United Kingdom

Agent Details

* First name ‘-

* Family name -

* E-mail licensing@narts.org.uk

Main telephone number 02072413636

Other telephone number _

[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
(¢ Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

(" Aprivate individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

Is your business registered in (¢ Yes C No
the UK with Companies

House?

Registration number 12194816

Business name NARTS CONSULTANCY LTD
VAT number - 487351166

Legal status Private Limited Company
Your position in the business |Licensing Consultant

Home country United Kingdom

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Note; completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Page 18

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Agent Registered Address

Building number or name l-

Street [ _
District I
City or town ‘London

County or administrative area ‘

Address registered with Companies House.

Postcode l-

Country ‘United Kingdom ‘
Section 2 of 4

PREMISES DETAILS

I/'we apply to vary a premises licence to specify the individual named in this application as the premises supervisor under

section 37 of the Licensing Act 2003.

* Premises licence number SBCLO167

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

(¢ Address (" OS map reference ( Description

Address

* Building number or name ‘9 The Oval

* Street ‘Vardon Road

District ‘Stevenage

* City or town ‘Hertfordshire

County or administrative area ‘

Postcode 1SG1 5RA

‘United Kingdom

* Country

Contact Details

E-mail

Telephone number

Other telephone number

Describe the premises. For example, what type of premises it is

Food Store and Off Licence

Page 19

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Section 3 of 4

SUPERVISOR

Full Name Of Proposed Designated Premises Supervisor

* First name ‘- ‘

* Family name e ‘
* Nationality British

* Place of birth [ |
* Date of birth |

e L SEEE]

Personal licence number of

proposed designated ‘_ ‘

premises supervisor

Issuing authority of that

licence ‘L.B. of Hackney ‘

Full Name Of Existing Designated Premises Supervisor

First name - ‘
Family name - ‘

* Would you like this application to have immediate effect under section 38 of
the Licensing Act 2003?

(¢ Yes  No

X Iwill notify the existing premises supervisor (if any) of this application

* Will the premises licence or relevant part of it be submitted with this
application?

(¢ Yes  No

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(" Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to this variation

Reference number for consent
form (if known)

The premises licence holder can continue
the supply of alcohol if, for example, the
existing premises supervisor is suddenly
indisposed or unable to work.

It is sufficient for the licensee to inform the
existing premises supervisor in writing,
without sharing the specific details of the
application.

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its ‘system reference’ or ‘your
reference’

Section 4 of 4

PAYMENT DETAILS

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

This formality requires a fixed fee of £23

DECLARATION

. |/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name — |
* Capacity ‘Licensing Consultant ‘
* Date 01|/ ]o1]| /| 2026 |

dd mm yyyy

‘ Remove this signatory |

Full name ‘ ‘

Capacity ‘ ‘

* Date [ “| “I |

dd mm yyyy

‘ Remove this signatory |

‘ Add another signatory |

Page 21

@ Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number |The Oval

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code |

Payment authorisation date I

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline |

Error message

Is Digitally signed O

1 2 3 4 Next>

Page 22

@ Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Consent of individual to being specified
as premises supervisor

| Mr - of _ [home address of prospective premises supervisor]

hereby confirm that | give my consent to be specified as the designated premises supervisor in relation to the
application for VARY DPS  [type of application] by MR _[name of applicant] relating to a
Premises Licence  SBCLO0167 [number of existing licence, if any]

for Borough Wines, 9 The Oval, STEVENAGE SG1 5RA [name and address of premises to which the application

relates]
and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made by MR I_
[name of applicant] concerning the supply of alcohol at Borough Wines, 9 The Oval, STEVENAGE SG1 5RA

[name and address of premises to which application relates]

| also confirm that | am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for, intend to apply for or
currently hold a personal licence, details of which | set out below.

Personal licence number _

[insert personal licence number, if any]

Personal licence issuing authority L.B. of HACKNEY
[insert name and address and telephone number of
personal licence issuing authority, if any]

Signed

FullName MR

Date 01/01/2026

<4 NARTS

Voice of Turkish & Kurdish Food Industry in Britain Page 23 n / na rtSbrita i n



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



SteYenage

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES
Stevenage Borough Council LICENSING AUTHORITY

Responsible Authority: Hertfordshire Constabulary

Your Name

Gillian Akroyd

Job Title

Senior Licensing Officer

Postal address

Stevenage Police Station
Lytton Way

Stevenage

Herts, SG1 1HF

Email Address

Gillian.akroyd@herts,police.uk

Contact telephone number

077334496130

Name of the premises you are
making a representation about

Borough Wines, application to vary DPS

Address of the premises you are
making a representation about

9 THE OVAL, VARDON ROAD
STEVENAGE
HERTFORDSHIRE

SG1 5RA

Is this the first objection in
respect of these premises

- Police applied for review of Oval Wines
Premises licence on 29" October,2024.

- The licence was revoked at a Licensing

- Hearing at SBC on 19" December 2024.

- Appeal was lodged and hearing at Stevenage
Magistrates Court will be held in December
2025.

- Application for Minor Variation was objected
to by Herts Constabulary and Trading
Standard in August 2025, this was upheld an

No application was refused on 18" August 2025.

- Multiple Representations have been made by
Stevenage Police Senior Licensing Officer,
on behalf of Hertfordshire Constabulary
against the application made by Emrah
ORUC to become DPS of Borough Wines
(formerly Oval Wines), and each time, the
application has been withdrawn prior to the
hearing date, and re-submitted as a new
application on the same day.

Page 25




Hertfordshire Constabulary, being a nominated Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003, wish
to make representation to this application.

Our representation(s) are made in consideration to the below licensing objectives, as we believe the
operating schedule does not adequately demonstrate how you, the applicant will best support this.

Licensing Objections

YES Yes | Evidence supporting representation or reason for representation.
Or | Please use continuation sheet as required
No
To YES | The proposed DPS is Premises Licence Holder for Borough Wines (formerly
prevent Oval Wines).
crime and
disorder

Evidence of multiple incidents of breaches of licence including sales of
illegal/illicit products, evidence of drugs paraphernalia and residue of cocaine
in various areas of premises. The proposed has been made aware of these
breaches, has been warned in writing by SLO Akroyd and has been viewed
on video footage at the scene of crime and disorder. See video footage
produced —

This is part of the revocation case, which is being appealed against and
to be heard in December 2025, at SMC.

A complaint was received by Police, on 22" July, 2025, by a MOP,
which has now been investigated in relation to the conduct of
Management of Oval Wines, and alleged breaches of the Licensing Act
2003. Statements and downloads of house CCTV are available to be
viewed.

¢ Following enquiries into this complaint, Mr Oruc did not offer
CCTV download, requested on several occasions, and was sent a
warning letter in respect of a breach of his Licencing Conditions.
See attached letter.

e Mr Oruc was also sent a letter in relation to sale of alcohol to a
drunk, which is also attached.

An incident was reported to Police on 9th September 2025, and reports
and evidence are attached to this application. This incident has
evidenced that the customer involved was highly intoxicated and was
able to purchase alcohol at Oval Wines.

Public YES | It is reported, and also admitted, by Mr Oruc, (the proposed DPS) that he has
safety been on scene when:

‘Disruption and violent disorder by customers around the vicinity of Oval
Wines, regarding activities, caused distress and alarm to other businesses
and their customers. CCTV footage is available.’

To Members of the ‘Oval’ gang used this as their hub and constantly
prevent YES | frequented the shop and gathered in close proximity outside.

public These males were causing distress and anti-social behaviour in and
nuisance around the Oval shopping precinct. Meeting in large numbers as many

as 20 to 30 people, smoking and believed to be dealing drugs. Using
foul and abusive language, intimidating people visiting the precinct and

causing a nuisance to cusf@agré ?ﬁhother local businesses.
Statement from Policed Sergeant Fathers, NPT, produced.




The proposed DPS/owner was aware and there is video footage of him
on scene when the gang have entered and exited the premises, during
an incident.

*Though the gang was dispersed by Police during additional
emergency patrols at that time, these are not permanent, and it is
believed they will resume their activities in the future.

To
protect
children
from
harm

YES

As there was evidence of drug use in the shop, due to residue being found within that
shop, (also there are concerns and gang related ASB), there was no chance of the
applicant/ owner, who attends the shop on a daily basis, not to being aware of this.

It has also been proven that illegal tobacco and other substances/medication have been
stored and found in the rear of the shop, which is of concern.

There are various Intelligence reports which refer to drugs and young males
attending the premises, some as young as 11 years of age and there is cause for
concern.

Knife carrying has also been mentioned.

Local authority CCTV has shown that previously suspects at the Oval in possession
of large machetes chasing this group, (many of whom are children), and some have
sought refuge in Oval Wines. When requested the licensee and owner/applicant,
have been unable to provide footage that shows this incident.

— Please also see recent failure by Mr Oruc, to furnish Police with download of
CCTV, requested on several occasions.

e As previously alluded to, though the gang was dispersed by Police during
additional emergency patrols at that time, these are not permanent, and it is
believed they will resume their activities in the future.

The below additions to the Schedule as provided at Part 4 of the application, identifies those matters that
we believe are necessary, to promote the licensing objectives.

Hertfordshire Constabulary is of the view that the proposed
DPS will not conform with the licence and have proven,
by way of constant breaches to which he will not adhere
to it. (See attached notes).

Added to this, the use of these premises for the purpose of
selling illegal vapes. tobacco/cigarettes, in the past, and the
evidence of drugs within the shop,

Police do not believe that the proposed
DPS/Management of the premises can be trusted to
adhere to the four Licensing Objectives.

The proposed DPS/PLH challenged police, in support of the
youths, during enquiries being conducted following incidents
around the premises, indicating that the youths were not
doing anything wrong.

As already stated, there is currently an outstanding
complaint from a MOP, being investigated in relation to an
alleged breach of the Licensing Act 2003, which, if founded
will deem Mr. Oruc as not fit and proper to be DPS at Oval

Wines. Page 27




OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:

Previous attitude of proposed DPS towards Police Officers,
Police staff on occasions, have been unacceptable.

Recent complaint from MOP is being investigated, including
attitude of management towards the complainant.

Information to be submitted with this application, however,
extract below from the complainant’s statement regarding a
drunk purchasing alcohol from the shop.

‘This person in particular, was irate when | mentioned
the licencing act and he said, “IF HE PICKS UP A 6
PACK OF BEER, IM SELLING IT TO HIM, WE ARE A
SHOP”.

Police do not expect this sort of behaviour from a DPS — see
comments made by the witness on statements with regard
to the sale of alcohol to a paying customer.

CCTV was requested by an Officer and was not readily
available on the day — 215t August 2025.

Since this date various attempts to retrieve downloads
of CCTV footage for specific dates, have been made,
and though some have now been received, there have
been unacceptable delays, and Police hours wasted
attempting to collect them.

There have been other requests by Police, visits made
and advice given by Officers, when Good Sam was
offered as a tool to assist Mr Oruc, (after reminders), to
transfer the CCTV download, for access by officers.
Additional information attached as evidence, due to
content offered, and missing footage.

It is a condition of the premises licence, (Condition 1 of
Annex 2) that The Oval Wines have CCTV in place which
will record and retain unedited images for up to 30 days
and which will be made available to any Responsible
Authority on request.

Additional Note;

More recently revised/replacement conditions were
offered by Mr Oruc, on the recently refused Minor
application for Oval Wines, as below:

Conditions to be added:

1. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) systems that capture
head and shoulders images of persons entering the
premises and

all points of sale shall be installed, operate and record video
images at all times that the premises are open to the public.
2. All CCTV recordings made shall be retained for not
less than 31 days and be made available to Police or an
authorised

officer of any responsible authority within one hour
upon rdaagse. Baccordance with current data




protection legislation.

3. A member of staff capable of operating the CCTV
system and downloading images shall be at the
premises at all times

that the premises are open to the public.

4. The CCTV system shall display on any recording, the
correct date and time of the recording.

Should you require clarification on any matter being made, please contact the named officer to discuss
further.

Signed ... GIUAOWVAKKOYA ...t i,
Date: ...10/01/2026...........cccveveenn... Ao,

Note for Officers:

Please submit this form along with any additional sheets to: Licensing at Stevenage Borough Council or email to
licensing@stevenage.gov.uk

This form must be returned within the Statutory Period.

Page 29



NOTES - INCIDENT AT OVAL WINES 9" SEPTEMBER 20205

On Tuesday 9*" September 2025, at approximately 17:00 hours, Police received a 999-call
stating there was a fight at the Oval Wines Store, 9, The Oval, Stevenage.

| have collated below the evidence | now offer, with regard to the incident.

The inBbrmation | have, | offer in relation to this shop serving to drunks, as Police have already
received complaints @tom a member ollthe public regarding an alcoholic being able to purchase
alcoholrom Oval Wines - see previous infrmation recently submitted.

Report and observations from Pc _

The infbrmant stated there was a fight outside the shop, involving five people, including two
Asian men who worked in the shop. Police arrived.

PC _Was among three officers attending the incident at the Oval.

His version olZlevents explained that when police arrived, they were made aware ol@two separate
allegations with regard to the incident.

The person who is employed at the shop was working the tills and the other party entered the
shop three to Pour times throughout the day.

He was eventually reflised alcohol by him, and the shop assistant and another, believed to be
employed by the shop, attempted to escort him out olZthe store. He stated that the customer
had then pushed him, so he pushed him back.

The customer then briefly lel the store belre returning as he believed that he had lef his
phone in the shop.

The shop assistant said that the customer then punched him to the le-hand side olZhis Pace,
causing no injury, over not being able to find his phone.

Allegations made by Customer:

He stated that he entered the store to purchase alcohol.

He was relfused the alcohol.

A verbal altercation ensued which resulted in the customer being pushed. As a result offithat
push, the customer ll backwards into a puddle.

The Officer stated that the staff Philed to provide CCTV when it was requested, telling Pc
HEEEthat ‘The boss wasn’tin, and he did not know how to work it?

On Wednesday 10" September, Pc - attended Oval Wines, and requested the CCTV
download @om Mr-who was in attendance at the shop. Mr-, once again, told Police
that he was unable to download CCTV at any length but in 10-minute snippets.

See below Zom Pc-

‘l was shown the CCTV from Oval wines, | have sent him a goodsam link for him to upload
the footage, he said it will come in 10 min chunks.
P’ve requested 16:30-17:00 under 09092025-0532 and 16:00-16:45 under 41/85817/25.°

Mr- has since supplied CCTV download, via GOODSAM, though in several 10-minute
snippets, which have been downloaded onto a CD by Police, due to it being conlusing, out ol
sequence, and duplicates olsome o@the snippets. See notes to accompany the viewing offithe
CD.

Page 30



LN
=

OVAL WINES camera
footage notes.docx

Attached is the statement@om Pc _ who was one o@the Officers dealing with this
incident, and who has made subsequent enquires to clari@ points raised.

[N
WE

MG11 1585
PICKERING, Jack 200¢

There isPbotage oPc_ attending the Oval, which, i@required, would be offered at any
hearing, by himsel®

|
Community Safety Unit an
Senior Licensing Officer Stevenage :

HERTFORDSHIRE

ey it CONSTABULARY

oliv | 4
N E— Pre\/ention First

Tackling Violence__ma‘nﬁ' Women & Girls

Pre\éntion First

In a non-emergency, report infbrmation online, speak to us via web chat or call via 101
(inan emergency, always dial 999).

Page 31



Additional/amended Notes in relation to the breach of Licence conditions for
Oval Wines in relation to production of CCTV to Responsible Authority

Following receipt of this information, and the CCTV being reviewed, Pc - of the
Neighbourhood Policing Team attended Oval Wines on the morning of

21t August. He requested footage for the times between the drunk individual leaving his
residence and when he returned to that residence, to verify that he had purchased his alcohol
from Oval Wines.

Timeline:

e The Sales assistant told INNNEEEE that he was unable to download as he had no
‘mouse,” therefore Pc [l attended the Police Station and returned later that
morning with a mouse. By that time MrJll owner and applicant for DPS, had
been contacted by the sales assistant, and spoke on the phone to Pcll telling
him that he was unable to produce the CCTV footage requested, at that time, but
offered to furnish him with the footage later, but asap

PC - re-contacted Mr Oruc on 22" August, as there had been no contact
from him, and was told by Mr. il that he was unable to offer it until the
beginning of the following week.

On Saturday 23° August Mr [Jlll made contact via e mail, with Pc [ ENIEM:ating
he was unable to download the CCTV. But if somebody from the Police were to
attend the shop, they could download.

Following Bank Holiday Monday, on Tuesday 26" August two PCSQ’s from
Stevenage Neighbourhood Policing Team, attended Oval Wines, as requested by
M [l to attempt to download the CCTV footage which had been requested by

Pcl previously.

When the PCSQO’s attended on that afternoon and requested the CCTV. Mr-
was not on site and had left a message that he unable to provide the CCTV as he
had said, and it was not accessible. This was captured on Body Worn Camera,
which will have the exact times.

M- then spoke with the PCSO'’s over the phone and asked that an officer
attend the shop on Thursday between 16:00 and 17:00 as he will be on site and
would have it accessible for download by Police.

On 28™ August at 16.50 hrs, PCSO- attended Oval Wines for a pre-arranged
collection of Downloaded CCTV. Mr Oruc informed PCSO- he was unable to
produce this. PCSO Il provided Mr[Jivith a Goodsam tink which he
agreed to upload the CCTV footage onto as soon as practicable.

on2"an 9" September 2025, PCSO [l checked the Gooosam link hadn’t
sent the CCTV footage as agreed. Statement by PCSO- and BWC footage of
the visit on 28th September is available.

On 8™ October, 2025 PCS_ was tasked to check the CCTV footage
produced by Mr-for 11" July, 2025 as a sample, due to the extent of number

Page 32



of files sent through by Mr.- Statement by PCSO - with results of that
check, attached, and identifying a gap of 44minutes, is available.

New additional information from 9" September, 2025

A further disruption was recorded at Oval Wines, on 9" September, 2025, which relates to two
inebriated males, who were involved in an incident within and outside the shop.

NOTES attached separately.

Page 33



NOTES - INCIDENT AT OVAL WINES 9" SEPTEMBER 20205

On Tuesday 9" September 2025, at approximately 17:00 hours, Police received a 999-call
stating there was a fight at the Oval Wines Store, 9, The Oval, Stevenage.

| have collated below the evidence | now offer, with regard to the incident.

The information | have, | offer in relation to this shop serving to drunks, as Police have already
received complaints from a member of the public regarding an alcoholic being able to purchase
alcohol from Oval Wines - see previous information recently submitted.

Report and observations from Pc_

The informant stated there was a fight outside the shop, involving five people, including two
Asian men who worked in the shop. Police arrived.

PC _ was among three officers attending the incident at the Oval.

His version of events explained that when police arrived, they were made aware of two separate
allegations with regard to the incident.

The person who is employed at the shop was working the tills and the other party entered the
shop three to four times throughout the day.

He was eventually refused alcohol by him, and the shop assistant and another, believed to be
employed by the shop, attempted to escort him out of the store. He stated that the customer
had then pushed him, so he pushed him back.

The customer then briefly left the store before returning as he believed that he had left his
phone in the shop.

The shop assistant said that the customer then punched him to the left-hand side of his face,
causing no injury, over not being able to find his phone.

Allegations made by Customer:

He stated that he entered the store to purchase alcohol.

He was refused the alcohol.

A verbal altercation ensued which resulted in the customer being pushed. As a result of that

push, the customer fell backwards into a puddle.

The Officer stated that the staff failed to provide CCTV when it was requested, telling Pc
that ‘The boss wasn’tin, and he did not know how to work it?

On Wednesday 10" September, Pc - attended Oval Wines, and requested the CCTV
download from Mr-, who was in attendance at the shop. Mr- once again, told Police
that he was unable to download CCTV at any length but in 10-minute snippets.

See below from Pc -

‘I was shown the CCTV from Oval wines, | have sent him a goodsam link for him to upload
the footage, he said it will come in 10 min chunks.
I’ve requested 16:30-17:00 under 09092025-0532 and 16:00-16:45 under 41/85817/25.°

Mr- has since supplied CCTV download, via GOODSAM, though in several 10-minute
snippets, which have been downloaded onto a CD by Police, due to it being confusing, out of
sequence, and duplicates of some of the snippets. See notes to accompany the viewing of the
CD.

Page 34



available from Pc _

Page 35



Additional/amended Notes in relation to the breach of Licence conditions for
Oval Wines in relation to production of CCTV to Responsible Authority

Following receipt of this information, and the CCTV being reviewed, Pc [l of the
Neighbourhood Policing Team attended Oval Wines on the morning of

21t August. He requested footage for the times between the drunk individual leaving his
residence and when he returned to that residence, to verify that he had purchased his alcohol
from Oval Wines.

Timeline:

e The Sales assistant told Pc [l that he was unable to download as he had no
‘mouse,’ therefore Pc attended the Police Station and returned later that
morning with a mouse. By that time Mr. |JJlll owner and applicant for DPS, had
been contacted by the sales assistant, and spoke on the phone to Pc I telling
him that he was unable to produce the CCTV footage requested, at that time, but
offered to furnish him with the footage later, but asap

PC [l re-contacted Mr [l on 22 August, as there had been no contact
from him, and was told by Mr. il that he was unable to offer it until the
beginning of the following week.

On Saturday 23" August Mr [JJll made contact via e mail, with Pl stating
he was unable to download the CCTV. But if somebody from the Police were to
attend the shop, they could download.

Following Bank Holiday Monday, on Tuesday 26" August two PCSQ’s from
Stevenage Neighbourhood Policing Team, attended Oval Wines, as requested by
M to attempt to download the CCTV footage which had been requested by
Pc Brown previously.

When the PCSQO’s attended on that afternoon and requested the CCTV. Mr-
was not on site and had left a message that he unable to provide the CCTV as he
had said, and it was not accessible. This was captured on Body Worn Camera,
which will have the exact times.

Mr- then spoke with the PCSO'’s over the phone and asked that an officer
attend the shop on Thursday between 16:00 and 17:00 as he will be on site and
would have it accessible for download by Police.

On 28" August at 16.50 hrs, PCSO - attended Oval Wines for a pre-arranged
collection of Downloaded CCTV. Mr- informed PCSO - he was unable to
produce this. PCSO |l provided Mr [l with a GoodSam link which he
agreed to upload the CCTV footage onto as soon as practicable.

on2"an 9" September 2025, PCSO [l checked the Gooosam link hadn’t
sent the CCTV footage as agreed. Statement by PCSO - and BWC footage of
the visit on 28th September is available.

On 8™ October, 2025 PCSO - was tasked to check the CCTV footage
produced by Mr-for 11" July, 2025 as a sample, due to the extent of number

Page 36



of files sent through by Mr. - Statement by PCSO - with results of that
check, attached, and identifying a gap of 44minutes, is available.

New additional information from 9" September, 2025

A further disruption was recorded at Oval Wines, on 9" September, 2025, which relates to two
inebriated males, who were involved in an incident within and outside the shop.

NOTES attached separately.

Page 37



NOTES - INCIDENT AT OVAL WINES 9" SEPTEMBER 20205

On Tuesday 9" September 2025, at approximately 17:00 hours, Police received a 999-call
stating there was a fight at the Oval Wines Store, 9, The Oval, Stevenage.

| have collated below the evidence | now offer, with regard to the incident.

The information | have, | offer in relation to this shop serving to drunks, as Police have already
received complaints from a member of the public regarding an alcoholic being able to purchase
alcohol from Oval Wines - see previous information recently submitted.

Report and observations from P_

The informant stated there was a fight outside the shop, involving five people, including two
Asian men who worked in the shop. Police arrived.

PC _ was among three officers attending the incident at the Oval.

His version of events explained that when police arrived, they were made aware of two separate
allegations with regard to the incident.

The person who is employed at the shop was working the tills and the other party entered the
shop three to four times throughout the day.

He was eventually refused alcohol by him, and the shop assistant and another, believed to be
employed by the shop, attempted to escort him out of the store. He stated that the customer
had then pushed him, so he pushed him back.

The customer then briefly left the store before returning as he believed that he had left his
phone in the shop.

The shop assistant said that the customer then punched him to the left-hand side of his face,
causing no injury, over not being able to find his phone.

Allegations made by Customer:

He stated that he entered the store to purchase alcohol.

He was refused the alcohol.

A verbal altercation ensued which resulted in the customer being pushed. As a result of that
push, the customer fell backwards into a puddle.

The Officer stated that the staff failed to provide CCTV when it was requested, telling Pc
_that ‘The boss wasn’tin, and he did not know how to work it?

On Wednesday 10" September, Pc - attended Oval Wines, and requested the CCTV
download from .- who was in attendance at the shop. Mr-, once again, told Police
that he was unable to download CCTV at any length but in 10-minute snippets.

See below from Pc -

‘I was shown the CCTV from Oval wines, | have sent him a goodsam link for him to upload
the footage, he said it will come in 10 min chunks.
I’ve requested 16:30-17:00 under 09092025-0532 and 16:00-16:45 under 41/85817/25.°

M- has since supplied CCTV download, via GOODSAM, though in several 10-minute
snippets, which have been downloaded onto a CD by Police, due to it being confusing, out of
sequence, and duplicates of some of the snippets. See notes to accompany the viewing of the
CD.

Page 38



available from Pc _

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



DECISION NOTICE

LICENSING ACT 2003

REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE BY STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENSING COMMITTEE
PREMISES ADDRESS: The Oval Wines, 9 the Oval, Stevenage. SG1 5RA

LICENCE HOLDER: I

REVIEW APPLICANT: Hertfordshire Constabulary

DATE OF HEARING: 19 December 2024

DATE OF DECISION NOTICE: 23 December 2024

DECISION: To revoke the premises licence

PRESENT:
e Councillors

Council Officers

e Responsible Authorities
|
|
Hertfordshire County Council Trading Standards - || NI

e Licence Holder - Oval Wines

I iconce Holder, I c<ns ng advisers,

BACKGROUND:

1. The Oval Wines is located in the shopping precinct at The Oval, Stevenage. It has a premises
licence in place which authorises the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises, Monday
to Sunday between the hours of 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs.

THE APPLICATION

2. An application for a review of the premises licence for The Oval Wines, 9 the Oval, Stevenage.
SG1 5RA had been made by Senior Licensing Officer|jjjilillof Hertfordshire Constabulary.
Representations have been made by Hertfordshire Trading Standards as a Responsible
Authority. No representations were made by other responsible authorities or by members of the
public.

Page 1 of 9

Page 41



3. The basis for the review application is fully set out in the agenda for the Committee meeting. In

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

summary the application for the review cites all four of the licensing objectives and are
summarised in the report as follows:

The prevention of crime and disorder

Evidence of multiple incidents of breaches of licence including supply/sales of illegal/illicit
products, evidence of drugs paraphernalia and residue of cocaine in various public and private
areas of the premises. Statements from Police Officers and supporting evidence is contained
with this review application.

The premises have failed to observe their licensing conditions attached to the Premises Licence
for The Oval Wines, predominantly Annex 2 Condition 1 which refers to the requirement for a
digital CCTV system recording images which will be retained in an unedited form for up to 30
days and which shall be made available to any responsible authority upon request, however on
multiple occasions when Police have requested CCTV footage it has been unavailable. The
Designated Premises Supervisor has also failed to make himself available to Police.

Trading Standards officers have recently seized illegal items from these premises. On 3™ October
2024 Trading Standards Officer recovered illegal products from The Oval Wines including
tobacco pouches, a number of cartons of cigarettes and a number of Viagra jellies, which can
only be obtained following a consultation with a pharmacist. A witness statement and
supporting documents from the Senior Trading Standards Officer have been provided by Police
and is contained within this review application.

5. Public Safety

5.1.

5.2.

The Oval has a gang who are using the shop as their base, and are causing anti-social
behaviour, and it is believed that they are dealing drugs from the shop. (See drug wipe results).
There is evidence of knife related crime in the vicinity. On a daily basis known drug users, dealers
and perceived gang members are both inside or just outside of the shop, and it is believed
exchanges are being made and deals are taking place.

Evidence of multiple incidents of breaches of licence include sales of illegal/illicit products,
evidence of drug paraphernalia and residue of cocaine in various areas of premises.

6. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

6.1.

Members of the the ‘Oval’ gang appear to use Oval Wines as their hub, gathering in close
proximity outside. Disruption and violent disorder by customers around the vicinity of Oval
Wines, include gang related fights, and believed drug exchanges and dealings, causing distress
and alarm to other businesses and their customers.

7. Protection of children from Harm/ Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.1.

There was evidence throughout The Oval Wines off licence of drug use with the Police drugs
wipes highlighting cocaine residue. There are various Intelligence reports which refer to drugs
and young males attending the premises, (some as young as 11 years of age) which is a cause
for concern. Knife carrying has been mentioned, CCTV shows suspects at The Oval were in
possession of large machetes who were seen chasing a group of young people/children, some of
whom sought refuge in The Oval Wines. No calls were made to Police regarding this incident
from The Oval Wines at the time of the incident and CCTV was not available from the premises
as required by the Premises Licence conditions.

Page 2 of 9

Page 42



8. Hertfordshire Police Constabulary are of the view that these premises will not conform, stating
that this is evidenced by the sustained noncompliance with the Premises Licence and its
conditions. In addition to this, the use of the premises for the purpose of selling illegal vapes,
tobacco/cigarettes and evidence obtained of drugs (cocaine) within the shop. Police believe that
the failure of the premises licence holder to adhere or promote the four licensing objectives
coupled with the absence of the designated premises supervisor from the premises and that they
are non-contactable suggests that neither are in a position to continue to manage the premises
to meet their obligations under the Licensing Act 2003. It is the request of the Police that the
premises licence be revoked in its entirety.

9. The application for review was accepted as valid and duly made by the Council on 29t October
2024.

10. Subsequently Hertfordshire County Council Trading Standards made representations in support
of the review application, based on the discovery on the premises of illegal tobacco products
and a prescription-only medication.

The Hearing
Police Evidence

11. The Police representatives spoke to the basis of their application for review of the licence. They
spoke of incidents connected with the premises and said that they had serious concerns about
the management of the premises.

11.1. On 3 October 2024 Police had been present when illegal items had been seized. These were
illegal tobacco products and cigarettes. A Viagra-type jelly was found in the shop which could
only be sold with a prescription. There were items of drugs paraphernalia ( a grinder and small
bags). £4,000 in cash was found in a bag and was seized. No explanation was offered for the
presence of the cash.

11.2. Drugs wipes were used on the visit, which showed strong indications of cocaine use in the
toilet, sink and kitchen area, as well as on both sides of the customer counter. However, no
drugs were found on the premises.

11.3. The License Holder had failed to produce CCTV footage in breach of licence conditions. The
request for CCTV footage was made in the light of a very serious incident on 30 August 2024
involving gang violence in the vicinity of the premises. CCTV footage was requested on a
subsequent visit to the shop on 3 October 2024 but, again, was not available.

11.4. It was a licence condition that the Designated Premises Supervisor, [JJJJJli]. should be
readily available but attempts by the Police to contact him had failed.

11.5. The Police were concerned that the “Oval Gang” was using the shop as a base and was
dealing drugs either within the shop or in its close vicinity.

11.6. The Police believed that the Licence Holder supported customers against the Police and did
not co-operate in supporting Police efforts to tackle crime and disorder in the area. On one
occasion, gang members escaped through the shop. The Licence Holder had not contacted the
Police to alert them to the incident on 30 August despite being present and did not volunteer
witness information.

Page 3 of 9

Page 43



11.7. Inresponse to questions from the Licence Holder and his representative, the Police
confirmed that no drugs or weapons had been found on the premises and that they had not
seen drug dealing taking place on the premises. The Police mentioned the absence of CCTV
footage from the premises.

11.8. The Police showed CCTV footage of the incident on 30 August 2024. This showed a clash
between members of rival gangs, some of whom were seen carrying machetes and knives. A
group was shown congregating outside the premises in the lead-up to the incident. The Police
believed that those involved had links to “County Lines” drug dealing operations.

11.9. Inresponse to questions from the Licence Holder and his representative, the Police
confirmed that no drugs or weapons had been found on the premises and that they had not
seen drug dealing taking place on the premises. The Police mentioned the absence of CCTV
footage from the premises. The Licence Holder’s representative asked the Police why they had
not arrestedll]. The Police said that they did not have evidence to support arrest and
clarified that they were not suggesting that | Jillwas drug dealing.

Trading Standards Evidence

12. I from Hertfordshire County Council’s Trading Standards Department said that one
of the Department’s roles was to deal with the sale of illegal tobacco.

12.1. She had attended Oval Wines on two occasions and had seized illegal tobacco on both. She
said that it was clear that the tobacco did not comply with packaging regulations which were
compulsory for tobacco sold in the UK. It was illegal to sell tobacco which was non-compliant
and duty would not have been paid on such tobacco.

12.2. It was possible that the tobacco was counterfeit and had been sent for tests. However, the
results were not yet available.

12.3. | s2id that the storage of the tobacco was suspicious, as it was concealed in drink
pallets from which cans had been removed and was kept separate from legitimate tobacco
which was on sale.

12.4.  Ms| explained the problems caused by illegal tobacco sales. Counterfeit tobacco
infringed intellectual property rights and was often linked to other sorts of criminality such as
money laundering and modern slavery. Not complying with packaging requirements
undermined the health approach to the sale of tobacco, avoiding the health messages required
by law. The non-payment of duty was also serious, as it deprived the Exchequer of revenue and
allowed tobacco to be sold more cheaply, making it more attractive to children.

12.5. In addition to illegal tobacco, the inspections uncovered the concealed presence of five
packets of "Kamagra Oral Jelly" which || lloc'ieved contained the same active
ingredient as Viagra, which was a prescription-only medicine, and which could not lawfully be
sold from the shop.

The Licence Holder’s Evidence

13. The Licence Holder, |l and his representative |l 2ddressed the Committee.
They had submitted a list of additional licence conditions which |l would be happy to
accept to address the issues raised by the review.

Page 4 of 9

Page 44



13.1. They placed much of the responsibility for issues with the premises on the failings of the

Designated Premises Supervisor, | I h2d recently been dismissed and ||

would personally take on the responsibilities of the DPS.

13.2. | had not worked for the previous owner and had no contact with him. Mr Oruc had
come to the premises with a clean record.

13.3. | rcrresentative criticised the licence conditions, saying that they were out of date
and the CCTV conditions were “sparse”.

13.4. The CCTV was now working satisfactorily. Initially, the hard disk for the system was too small
to store CCTV images for the time period required by the licence. This was why the images were
not available on the first visit by the Police.| il was not aware of the small size of the hard
drive and had subsequently replaced it. A failure by his CCTV provider in setting the system was
responsible for the absence of images on the second visit.

13.5. The presence of illegal products was not disputed butjjjjjililwas unaware of this. The
sales had been the responsibility of two members of staff who had been making sales “under
the counter”. They had since been dismissed. A proposed condition requiring the retention of
receipts for tobacco and alcohol products would address the problem.

13.6. The £4,000 cash found on the premises had belonged to another member of staff, who had
stored it there as it was a safer place to store the cash than the member of staff’s shared
accommodation.

13.7. I as as surprised as the Police about the positive results when the premises were
swabbed for drug residue. He thought it was possible that staff may have used drugs in the
toilets but he did not understand the results for the shop counter.

13.8. | for the future, was happy not to sell drugs paraphernalia but pointed out that their
sale was not unlawful and that the items found were sold in lots of shops. This did not make
him a drug dealer.

13.9. There was no evidence of weapons on the premises and it was not illegal for young people
to visit the premises. However, |l as happy for a condition to limit the number of
under-18s in the shop to two at a time.

13.10. |24 no links to the gang. He had no power to stop them congregating outside his
shop. He was not acquainted with the alleged gang members. He did not know names but
recognised some faces. He said that local traders had massive problems and had complained
many times. They didn’t call police to incidents as they were fearful. |JJJlldid not want to be
perceived as a “snitch”. The Police suggestion that he was linked to drug dealing put him at risk
as drug dealers might mistakenly think he was a rival. He said that there was no CCTV evidence
of drug sales to 11-year-olds. Tackling criminality by gangs was the responsibility of the Police,
not him. | llwould welcome a much greater Police presence, including immediately
outside his premises.

13.11. | as questioned by Police representatives at the hearing regarding CCTV footage of
the incident on 30 August 2024. It had become apparent shortly before the hearing that ]
il /25 visible in the CCTV footage obtained from other sources. He was asked why he had
not identified himself as a witness when the Police had requested CCTV footage from him. Mr
Il s2id that he had not been asked to make a statement. The Police said that, as || llihad

Page 5 of 9

Page 45



not said that he was present, they had not known that he was a witness. |JJJJil] said that he
didn’t want to get involved with Police or gang matters.

13.12. Further questions sought to clarify issues around CCTV, the drugs residue found and
whether |Jlllfe!t intimidated by the gang presence. I s 2fraid of being “labelled”
by the gang but would welcome uniformed Police presence.

13.13. Councillor il asked |l why he had not called the Police when he became aware of
unlawful activities by members of staff.|JJJlls representative said that he had not wished to
involve the Police.

13.14. ClIr Wren asked about the CCTV incident involving the machetes. |l said that he had
seen a machete and that his main objective was to get everyone away from his business. This
explained the apparent gesturing to gang members. People had run into his shop and he had
opened the rear door as he wanted to get them out. He did not want a physical confrontation.
Mr Hopkins said that the installation of an electronic lock on the front door, along with a “two
at a time” rule would tackle issues in the future. |JJililsaid that he was completely happy to
work with the Police.

13.15. Clir |l clarified how long | llhad been responsible for the premises and asked
whether there had been other incidents. [l said that there had been only minor incidents
and confirmed that these had been recorded in the incident book.

Summing Up
14. Opportunity was given for the parties to sum up.

14.1.  The Police referred to a meeting with|Jll on 19 April 2023, notes of which were
appended to the Licensing Committee report at page 39. (Item B1.) At the meeting|jjjjjjjijhad
seemed knowledgeable about licensing issues. At the meeting, the Police had offered help with
issues of anti-social behaviour.

14.2. M for Mr JJll stated that they had said what they wanted to say. Mr [}
deplored the sale of illegal tobacco and other unlawful activities. He had proposed an extensive
list of additional conditions and asked that Mr [Jjjijbe given another chance.

Findings of fact

15. The facts were, largely, not in dispute, although responsibility for the incidents that led to the
review application was contested.

15.1. The Licensing Committee made the following findings of fact:

15.1.1. The Licensee had breached the licence condition requiring CCTV images to be available for
inspection in an unedited form for up to 30 days.

15.1.2. The Designated Premises Supervisor had failed to make himself available to the Police, as
required by the licence.

15.1.3. The premises were used for the storage of illicit/illegal tobacco products and prescription-
only medicines.

15.1.4. The premises were used for the sale of drugs paraphernalia.

Page 6 of 9

Page 46



15.1.5. There was clear evidence of unlawful drug use within the premises, as shown by the positive
results for cocaine shown by swabbing.

15.1.6. The premises acted as a focus for a local gang, which congregated in the vicinity of the shop.
Gang activity was linked to incidents of violence and disorder, as shown in the CCTV footage
from 30 August 202.

15.1.7. Mr [Jllhad not pro-actively co-operated with the Police in addressing incidents of illegality
and anti-social behaviour.

Decision

16. The Committee’s decision is that the premises licence in respect of the premises should be
revoked.

The Licensing Objectives

17. The Committee took careful account of all the material before it, including representations made
by the Licensee.

17.1. The Committee also took account of the statutory guidance published under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003. Of particular relevance is the guidance from paragraph 11.24 on
“reviews arising in connection with crime.

17.2. The Committee was guided by paragraph 11.26, which states:

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises have
been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should be taken in
connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It
is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems may be taking
place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working
at the premises and despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In
such circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps
to remedy the problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the
promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of
the wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.

17.3.  Mrjjllijhad not disputed incidents of illegality on the premises but denied personal
responsibility. Whilst the Committee’s view was that Mr ] had done little, if anything, to
tackle illegality, the guidance makes it clear that personal culpability is not the issue.

17.4. Paragraph 11.27 says that there is “certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously”. These include the use of
licences premises “for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol”. It was not clear
whether the illegal tobacco found at the premises was smuggled or counterfeit but in either
case the Committee decided to treat this particularly seriously.

17.5. Paragraph 11.27 also refers to the use of licensed premises “as the base for the organisation
of criminal activity, particularly by gangs”. The Committee accepted that the premises were a
focus for gangs meeting in the vicinity, it did not find that the premises were used by gangs for
the organisation of criminal activity. However, there was evidence of the premises being used
for criminal activity, including the seizure of illicit tobacco and prescription-only medication, the
significant amount of cash and the extensive cocaine residues found.

Page 7 of 9

Page 47



17.6. The breaches of the licence conditions relating to CCTV and the availability of the Designated
Premises Supervisor were the personal responsibility of the licence holder, who could not avoid
responsibility merely by saying that they were caused by members of staff. Similarly, the
Licensee was responsible for ensuring that the premises were not used for unlawful purposes.

17.7. The Committee concluded that the incidents referred to above meant that the operation of
the premises did not promote, and were to the detriment, of the licensing objectives. Taking
these in turn:

The prevention of crime and disorder

17.8. The premises failed to promote this objective as a result of the incidents of breaches of
licence including the failure to record CCTV properly and to ensure that the Designated
Premises Supervisor was available.

17.9. The premises also failed to promote this objective as a result of multiple instances of
illegality in the use of the premises, including the discovery of cocaine residue, and the finding
of illegal tobacco products and prescription-only medication.

17.10. The licence holder failed to engage proactively with the Police in tackling issues of illegality
and anti-social behaviour.

17.11. Whilst not in itself unlawful, the sale of drugs paraphernalia from the shop was not helpful in
promoting this objective in a location which had clear problems with drug use and drug dealing.

Public Safety

17.12. The premises failed to promote this objective by acting as a base for a local gang to
congregate. The gang was associated with illegal activities and anti-social behaviour. The
incident of 30 August 2024 involving the use of machetes, and the use of the premises as an
escape route, was particularly serious.

17.13. The storage of illicit tobacco and prescription-only medication also posed a risk to public
safety as did the use of the premises for the consumption of illegal drugs.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

17.14. The focus of the premises as an area for congregation by a local gang contributed to public

nuisance in the area, as illustrated by the CCTV footage from 30 August 2024.

17.15. The Committee also decided that the absence of pro-active engagement by the Licence
Holder with the Police in tackling anti-social behaviour and illegality — in fact his admitted
avoidance of engagement — was detrimental to the promotion of this activity.

Protection of Children from Harm

17.16. The premises were accessible to children and the use of the premises for illegal drug use
could place children at risk.

17.17. The premises acted as a focus for the congregation of gang members in the vicinity. Some, if
not all, of the gang members were young persons. The focus given by the premises to gang
congregation was detrimental to this objective.

Page 8 of 9

Page 48



Reasons for revoking the licence

17.18. The Committee decided that action beyond words of advice or a warning was called for. The
premises were linked to serious illegality, breach of licence conditions and anti-social behaviour.
The Committee therefore considered the other options available to it. These are:

17.19. To modify the conditions of the licence. The Committee considered carefully the additional
conditions proposed on behalf of | ll However, it was clear that || llwas in significant
breach of licence conditions and had, by his own account, exercised little effective management
of the premises since becoming the licence holder. The Committee therefore had no confidence
that the imposition of additional licence conditions would be an effective step in ensuring the
proper promotion of the licensing objectives.

17.20. To exclude a licensable activity from the licence. The Committee did not consider that this
was a relevant option, given the limited scope of licensable activities covered by the licence.

17.21. To remove the designated premises supervisor. The Committee concluded that this would
not address the issues that had given rise to the review. In any case, the licence holder was
proposing to become the designated premises supervisor and the Committee had little
confidence in him exercising a satisfactory supervisory role.

17.22. To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months. The Committee concluded
that suspension would not adequately address the issues leading to the request for a review.
There was nothing to suggest that suspension would be adequate in ensuring that the licensing
objectives were met.

17.23. To revoke the licence. The Committee concluded that this was the appropriate option, given
the severity of the issues raised in this review, and taking account of the statutory guidance.

18. RIGHT OF APPEAL

18.1. Any person who is aggrieved by the Committee’s decision has the right to appeal to the
Magistrates’ Court. Any such appeal must be made within 21 days of the date of this notice. The
Committee’s decision will not come into effect until the end of the period for appealing the
decision or until the conclusion of any appeal.

Page 9 of 9

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m 10m

Sufl Drinks JI_

|L | L STORAGE - T _

20 . Shatves | Snatvas %&whc}:{l }(Shel{& / -
&E Srawes | Snewes Shatvas STOCK ROOM 520 !

| R B : =

Counter Till Connter Fronznn %

a ]

L bl %

SR N 5 0

b ’%{( snu.lsm'_ Spirits \&?’%W Viline Sheet «@
LM et X i Sl rnin telatalvieY SRR A

LEGEND

= N u RT SONCRAL NOTCS ADRESS TRAWING 181~ 07 ARRA
B ot [ ek i 'A s
L st

9 The Oval, Vardon Road STEVEMAGE SG1 ERA Q6/01/2025 ADD
ok of Turkish & Kurds Food Industry o Btain
i i e, PEAMNGNAME: SCALE 1:100 @ [saem1 1
ISR Hehato 1 sl

Ground Floor Plan

DRaeMOY:  OF GONTROL BY MHR

Page 51




LICENSING ACT 2003 SBCL0167

PREMISES LICENCE

LICENSING AUTHORITY

Daneshill House

Danestrete
SteYenage Stevenage
BOROUGH COUNCIL SG1 1HN

Borough Wines
9 The Oval
Stevenage
Herts
SG15RA

Telephone Number:

Where the Licence is time limited the dates: - 31 December 9999

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence:

J - Sale of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

J - Sale of Alcohol (Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises)
From: To:
Monday-Sunday 07:00 23:00

The opening hours of the premises: From: To:

Monday - Sunday 07:00 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:

) [
JL

1of6 SBCLO167



Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Emrah Oruc

Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol:

Emrah Oruc

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of Personal Licence held by Designated Premises Supervisor
(where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol):

Personal Licence Number:
Licensing Authority:

Paz%e 53
Page 20f 6 SBCLO167




ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS

1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence —
(a) atatime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b) at atime when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence
is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is
adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol
at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a
price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of this condition -
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —

P=D+(DxV)

where -

(i) P isthe permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date
of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) ‘“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) ‘“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.
Where the permitted price would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given
by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the
permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. .

30f6 SBCLO167




ANNEX 2 — CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

1)The premises will have CCTV in place. The digital CCTV system shall record images which will be retained in
unedited form for up to 30 days and which shall be made available for any Responsible Authority on request.

2)A notice shall be displayed requesting that customers respect the rights of local residents by not causing noise or
nuisance outside of the premises.

3)The Challenge 25 Scheme will operate. Accepted forms of ID (passport, driving licence, PASS cards) will be
requested by staff. Notices will be displayed to support.

4)A refusals book shall be kept and shall be made available for inspection on request by officers from the Police,
Trading Standards or the Licensing Authority.

ANNEX 3 — CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING

ANNEX 4 - AUTHORISED PLANS

See one attached plan: Dwg by OZ @NARTS Licensing, Ground Floor Plan. Control by MHR. Dated: 06.01.25

Date: 12th November 2025

Assistant Director, Planning & Regulation

Paq%e 25
Page 40f 6 SBCLO167



LICENSING ACT 2003 SBCL0167

PREMISES LICENCE

SUMMARY

Daneshill House

Danestrete
SteYenage Stevanage
BOROUGH COUNCIL SG1 1HN
Borough Wines
9 The Oval
Stevenage
Herts
SG1 5RA

Telephone Number:

Where the Licence is time limited the dates: - 31 December 9999

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence:

J - Sale of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

J - Sale of Alcohol (Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises)
From: To:
Monday-Sunday 07:00 23:00

The opening hours of the premises: From: To:

Monday - Sunday 07:00 23:.00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies:

Alcohol is supplied for consumption off the Premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:

F;age 56 _

50of6 SBCLO167



Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Emrah Oruc

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Emrah Oruc

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

Restricted by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003

Assistant Director, Planning & Regulation Date: 12th November 2025

Pas%e 57
Page 6°0f 6 SBCLO167



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



From:

Sent: IZ Fepruary 2025 13:32

To:

Cc:

Subject: [External] Statement -
Attachments: MG11 [ 11.02.25.docx

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

Goad afternoon-

I forward an E mait from Pc Il who has taken a statement from the above named, in relation to Ml_, owner Of Oval Wines.

| also attach the statement from - to be included in both the Review for DPS application for - and the Appeal Application to be heard at Stevenage
M@istrates Court.

«Q
Mg?ly thanks and kindest regards,
o)

o

Community Safety Unit
Senior Licensing Officer Stevenage :

CONSTABULARY

Office: 01438 757370
Mobile:

o — Pre%?ntion First




Tackling Violence [zgaitst Women & Girls

) ==

Preﬁ@ntion First

In a non-emergency, report information online, speak to us via web chat or call via 101 (in an emergency, always dial 999).

From:
Sent: 12 February 2025 13:09
To:,

Subject: KE: Statement -

Hi Il

JuBto confirm how we came into this information, we needed to further speak to these former staff members due to seizing some items from the location with
tr&ing standards that actually ended up belonging to them and they have since been ruled out of any further action. As part of our further engagement and the fact
th@y both work at another local business on my ward and as part of the follow up they raised they were unhappy with what they had read and being blamed and
wEC);rted to provide part of side.

Thanks

Neighbourhood Team PC

SNT Stevenage North =

4 CONSTARUL ARY
Office: Stevenage SNT e
herts.police.uk ® .
Follow us @hertspolice Pre%ntlon FI rSt
From:n

Sent: Tuesaay, Fepruary 11, 2025 4:2/:01 PM



To: [
Subject: Statement - _

PC
Neighbourhood Team PC
SNT Stevenage North

Office: Stevenage SNT

herts.police.uk
Follow us @hertspolice

In a non-emergency, report information online, speak to us via web chat or call via 101 (in an emergency, always dial 999).

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of communication. Hertfordshire Constabulary monitors all internet e-mail activity and content. This communication
is gpnfidential and intended for the addressee(s) only. Please notify the sender if you have received this in error. Unauthorised use or disclosure of the contents may be
uptawful. Opinions expressed in this document may not be official policy.
Fo&;‘nore details please see Hertfordshire Constabulary Privacy Policy

H




RESTRICTED (when complete) | MG11

Witness Statement Page 1 of 1

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

] |

Age if under 18 (if over insert “over 18”): Occupation: Ex Employee

This statement (consisting of ...... 2... Pages(s) each signed by me} is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be

false, or do not believe to be true.

I can confirm that the Victim Personal Statement (VPS) has been explained and offered to me tick box
| do wish to make a VPS at this time
| understand that | can make a VPS at any time before a sentencing hearing tick box

*delete as applicable

Date: 11/02/2025

Signature:
by °T "

| am the named-above person, and this statement relates to incidents | was witness to in my
former employment at OVAL WINES under the management of NG

The persons | shall mention in this statement are:

E - former manager and owner of OVAL WINES. | know him from my time over 16
months of employment at the location. | shall refer to him as|jjjjjjjthroughout my statement.

| am making this statement following the local news of the ongoing issues surrounding this
premises. | initially worked there doing general day to day duties such as filling shelves with
stock and serving customers. | was aware llllll vas the store owner and would cross over
with ORUC doing the later shift in the store with myself working mostly in the day time.

Throughout my time there was some clear issues in regards to the legality of some of the stock
we were asked to sell. That being in reference to Cigarettes — usually packs of MARLBORO,
being asked to sell those for £8 per pack, PACKETS OF TOBACCO for around £20 and
VIAGRA JELLIES for £5. We were asked to sell these by ORUC.

The items above, which | suspected were illegal and which was confirmed from the trading
standards visit, were stashed into the bottom of other stock by-le would arrive in his
work van at the rear of the store and bring the items in as well Tenegr.ate stock and he
himself would place those illegal items in their hidden locations. | am fully aware due to regular
customers that this is the same stock the previous owner had been selling as it seemed to be
purposely ordered in for these exact people. | do not know them other than they would always
attend and ask for these items. This evidently continued throughout my substantial period of
time being employed at this location.

Signature: N Sig_;nature Witnessed by:

0w | | RESTRRAGD (hen complete) |




| RESTRICTED (when complete) | me11 |

Witness Statement Page 2 of 2
Continuation of Statement of [N === =

| was shocked to read thaillllll~as blaming us for this in the recent information in the media
and also the other, what | can only describe as a lie about us being sacked by him. Myself and
my colleague were not sacked. Following the trading standards visit, | decided | wanted nothing
more to do with his store and served my 2 weeks resignation notice. | left of my own accord and
seek employment elsewhere. | am offended that Illllllvould even consider shouldering the
blame onto us when all | did was exactly what he asked me to do every day at work.

I would sell per shift around £100 of the illegal items. As asked directly to do so by [N

| was also aware that the licence holder was a_’lowever in the 16 months | never
met him at any point throughout to the point.

| have no knowledge of ay drugs involvement from my time working at the store, | do not know
what took place after I left work for the day.

| also want to raise an issue about the CCTV, which | never had access to and could not
provide police evidence when asked, is that it clearly worked and whenever | would pass a
message tc he would state he would deal with it, but clearly that has not happened. Had
we had the appropriate training | would of happily provided whatever footage the Police
requested.

| am shocked about the way the blame seems to of been passed onto myself and this has upset
me to some degree as | do not want my reputation destroyed by malicious statements. | am a
young man with a whole career ahead of me and it is not right to be put in this position. As such
this is my statement.

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:

———Page 63 y
._\ESTRICTES (when complete)

04/2013 |




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11

Witness Statement Page 1 of 1

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN:

statementof: | NNEEEENE

Age if under 18 (if over insert “over 18”): Occupation: _

This statement (consisting of ...... 2...... Pages(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be

false, or do not believe to be true.

| can confirm that the Victim Personal Statement (VPS) has been explained and offered to me I:I tick box
| do /I do not* wish to make a VPS at this time
| understand that | can make a VPS at any time before a sentencing hearing I:I tick box

*delete as applicable

Signature: Date: 08/08/2025

This statement is in relation to concerns surrounding the sale of alcohol on a regular basis to
someone already under the influence from OVAL WINES.

The person | shall mention in my statement is || Il house mate of mine in the multi occ |
reside at. He moved in APRIL 2025.

scene
From the first day hewas moved in by the council it was disclosed that he was a respectable
person. He was working and everything at the time. | know him as ||, and with that first lot
of work money he started to buy a lot of drink. And things escalated from there, he was wiping
faeces on the sink and toilets all influenced by drinking. He consumes very high alcohol
percentage drinks, which he can only get at the off licence OVAL WINES.

| decided to confront the store he goes to, OVAL WINES, and stated to the shop worker the issues
and they assured me they wouldn’t sell him anymore alcohol. | raised my concerns for his
alcoholism and made them aware as | was genuinely concerned. However this did not happen and
continued and | had a bit of resistance from one member of staff when | again challenged this.

| spoke with CO-OP and MORISSONS and they stated they were already aware of him and had
stopped him from coming in. Shortly after this is when the switch to OVAL WINES occurred
coming home with black carrier bags which | know OVAL WINES use, then the occasional blue
carrier bag they also use.

The person was around 5ft 10 not a big bloke slim build, short dark hair with little grey hair coming
in and a beard well kept. | do not know his name but definitely middle aged and had authority
about him as if he was the owner, he spoke with an accent as well. This person in particular was
irate when | mentioned the licencing act and he said “IF HE PICKS UP A 6 PACK OF BEER IM

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:

04/23131 RESTRICH'GGQ\Aﬁén complete)




RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11

Witness Statement Page 2 of 2

Continuation of Statement of — ______________________________________________________________________________

SELLING IT TO HIM WE ARE A SHOP”. | was absolutely dumbfounded at this and walked away
as this was clearly falling on deaf ears. | cannot remember the specific date of this at this time.

I 25 become volatile and aggressive and only ever when he has been and gotten alcoho
from OVAL WINES. It is affecting mine and my house mates way of life especially when he
staggers around the house when he has soiled himself.

| am dismayed that OVAL WINES took this stance and were clearly just looking for the quick sale.
OVAL WINES is also the only off licence close by to where we live as well, that makes it feasible
for the time |l to go and come back with alcohol. They have clear licencing guidelines to
honour and they clearly are not abiding by these conditions or helping people who are clearly
under the influence by continuing to sell alcohol.

| have suspicions more goes on at the location due to seeing many volatile people going there like
the music videos with the gangs etc.

| am raising this with you as | don’t want this to continue and see this store affecting my wider
community by their persistence in supplying alcohol to people who should not be served.

Signature: ignature Witnessed by:

W — Page-66
04/2013 RESTRIC'HED (when complete)




From: |

Sent 09 September 2025 18:00

To:

Ce: I

Subject: [External] Objection submitted - Statement from PCSO -
OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

Good afternoon -,

Further to my objection to the DPS application by-, | have received a written statement, along with
Body Worn Camera footage, from PCSO - of Stevenage Neighbourhood Policing Team, who attended
Oval Wines, as pre-arranged by her colleague Pc - to collect downloaded CCTV from _

To date the CCTV download has still not been received in any form, and | would like to submit this as additional
evidence If | may on behalf of Herts Constabulary .

| will await your instruction,

Kindest regards,

HERTFORDSHIRE

CONSTABULARY

il

Pre\/éntion First

Fre\éntion First

In a non-emergency, report information online, speak to us via web chat or call via 101 (in an
emergency, always dial 999).

Internet e-mail is not to be treated as a secure means of communication. Hertfordshire Constabulary
monitors all internet e-mail activity and content. This communication is confidential and intended for
the addressee(s) only. Please notify the sender if you have received this in error. Unauthorised use or
disclosure of the contents may be unlawful. Opinions expressed in this document may not be official
policy.

For more details please see Hertfordshire Constabulary Privacy Policy

Page 67



RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11

Witness Statement Page 1 of 1

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

X URN:
statementof: | GGG

Police Community
Age if under 18 (if over insert “over 18”): Over 18 Occupation: _Support Officer

This statement (consisting of ...... 2...... pages(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be

false, or do not believe to be true.

| can confirm that the Victim Personal Statement (VPS) has been explained and offered to me. I:I tick box
I do /| do not* wish to make a VPS at this time.

| understand that | can make a VPS at any time before a sentencing hearing. I:I tick box

*delete as applicable

- [ e o

| am the above-named officer employed by the Hertfordshire Constabulary.

This statement is in relation to an attempted collection of CCTV from OVAL WINES on THURSDAY 28™
OF AUGUST 2025.

The location was OVAL WINES, STEVENAGE, SG1 5RA. OVAL WINES is located at the shops in PIN
GREEN. Through out the statement | will refer to the location as OVAL WINES.

Excluding my colleagues | will refer to one person, | | |} . I is the manager of OVAL
WINES. | have met this male on a couple of occasions and would recognise him again if | saw him. |
would describe this person as a white male, approximately 510", slim build, with short dark curly hair,
with a dark beard. On the day of this interaction |l was wearing a light-coloured polo shirt and
dark jeans.

On the above date, | was on duty in full uniform, under the call sign il on foot patrol, single crewed.
At the commencement of my shift, | took with me my Police issued Body Warn Camera (BWC), serial
number [l to use and when required during my duty.

At 16:50, | attended OVAL WINES to collect CCTV. This Interaction was recorded on my BWC, and |
exhibit the BWV footage as SB/01.

This tasking for collection of CCTV was issued by PC ||} Il who had prearranged a suitable
date and time (1600-1700hrs) with [Nl prior to my attendance.

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:

01/2018 RESTRIGERD G@hen complete)




RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11

Witness Statement Page 2 of 2

Continuation of Statement of —

Whilst engaging with [l he has stated that he was not able to supply the CCTV at the time. This
is because his CCTV technician was “out of the country” and he did not have access to the hard drive
that stored the CCTV footage. He did however state he was able to download 10-minute segment clips

from his mobile phone. To assist this, | provided |l with a GOOD SAM link which he agreed to
upload the CCTYV footage to as soon as practicable.

| then left the OVAL WINES store and continued with my duties. | later returned to STEVENAGE
POLICE STATION and sent out the first GOODSAM link to | Gz

On TUESDAY 2"° SEPTMEBER 2025, | realised the first link had failed to send so | resent a second
link. After this date the GOODSAM link was monitored by myself and no footage had been received.

| can confirm as of TUESDAY 9™ SEPTEMBER 2025, | have checked GOODSAM, and | stil
hasn’t sent in the footage as agreed.

| exhibit the following:
SB/01 — BWV of requesting CCTV footage from |l at OVAL WINES, STEVENAGE.

Signature: Signature Witnessed by:

01/2018 RESTRIGFEBdwWhgn complete)




S HERTFORDSHIRE
Bl g CONSTABULARY

16" September , 2025

Dear

Attendance Oval Wines - Pc and

On Thursday 12t of August 2025, Police Constable ||}l visited Oval Wines, and
requested a download of the CCTV in relation to an enquiry he was conducting following a
complaint received by a member of the public that allegedly involved Oval Wines during July
and August 2025.

The Officer was informed by staff on duty that he was not able to do so, as he had no ‘mouse’
to operate the machine. Pc [l returned to the Police Station and collected a ‘mouse’ and
then revisited Oval Wines later that day. At that time the sales assistant informed Pc ||l
that he had spoken to yourself and told him that the only person able to access the CCTV was
the store owner/yourself, who was not yet at work.

Pc [l then spoke to yourself on the phone, and you told him you were unable to furnish
him with the download but would do so later, and as soon as possible.

When Pc [l re-contacted you on 22" August, as you had not made contact with him,
you told him you were unable to offer the download, but would do so the following week. On
23 August, you contacted PCl| by e mail, telling him you were unable to download the
CCTV, but were happy for Police to do so.

As this was Bank Holiday weekend, on Tuesday 26™ August, PCSO | I, and 2
colleague, attended Oval Wines, as requested by yourself, to attempt to download/collect the
CCTV footage. You were not on site, but had left a message that you were unable to provide
the CCTV as it was not accessible.

You then spoke with the PCSO over the phone and asked that an officer attend the shop on
Thursday between 16:00 and 17:00 as you would be on site and would have it accessible for
download by Police.

Page 70



They re-attended at that time and again, you said you were unable to offer it and after
discussion PCSO [l offered an alternative to assist, and this was GOODSAM, which
you agreed to.

This visit was captured on body warn camera.

Since that time, there have been conversations between yourself and PCSO [}, but to
date, though you have accessed GOODSAM, you have not downloaded anything at all.

As Premises Owner, | write to inform you that this is a breach of the Premises Licence.
Below is an extract from the premises licence conditions which are being breached:

‘The premises will have CCTV in place. The digital CCTV system shall record images which
will be retained in unedited form for up to 30 days and which shall be made available for any
Responsible Authority on request’.

Please consider this letter as a further ‘written warning’.

This has been recorded and should any further offences of this nature be committed, then
Hertfordshire Constabulary will record this and add it to the current concerns in respect of
the application for Designated Premises Supervisor, and the ‘Appeal in regard to the

revocation of the premises licence.

A copy of this letter has been forwarded to Stevenage Borough Council

Yours sincerely,

Police Senior Licensing Officer

Cc:

Licensing and Enforcement Officer
Licensing Office,

Stevenage Borough Council

Page 71



MG 11(T)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B: Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

URN

Statement of: |

Age if under Over (If over 18, insert ‘Over 18’)
18: 18

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief, and | make it knowing that, if it
is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything
which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Signature

bate: 21/08/2025

Tick if witness evidence is visually (Supply witness details on rear)
recorded

| am the above-named person and employed by Hertfordshire Constabulary (41/1849)
since August 2009 and currently based at STEVENAGE Police Station.

This statement is in relation to the investigation of the OVAL Wines, THE OVAL,
STEVENAGE.

This statement was made as soon as practicable, in isolation and during the same tour of
duty while the events were fresh in my memory.

On Thursday, 21 August 2025, | was on duty in in a marked Police Tac vest, full Police
uniform and PPE, under the call-sign [JJJli} in the STEVENAGE (E1) area on mobile
patrol in an unmarked car.

At 1010hrs | attended the OVAL WINES to try and obtain their CCTV as requested by [}
I o is investigating them. | was informed by the worker called ] that he
could work the CCTV to download it for me but did not have a working computer mouse to
work the machine and therefore | left.

| returned at 1152hrs with a mouse to use to find Ish on the phone to his boss called
I (Via the name displayed on il phone). il agreed to provide the CCTV from
his phone, and | agreed to send him via e-mail the dates and times to then load to
GoodSam (GS). ] advised that the CCTV lasts 3 months but then advised that it would
take 2 hours to download 2 hours’ worth of footage and ] would need to work during this
being downloaded so made sense to give JJj time to download and then upload in due
course. ] asked what it was about, and | advised that it related to an incident that has
occurred outside the shop, but the offender has come in and out of the shop before of
after.

[l asked what he was looking for on the footage to which | repeated the above and no
more.

| can exhibit this e-mail exchange as [l as | made the CCTV request at 1222hrs and

venatre I

Signature witnessed by:

MG11(t) 12/2009 10f2




MG 11(T)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B: Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1
the GS a few minutes later using the ref HC-21082025-1849.
| then completed this statement & | had no further dealings with the case.

| consider all my actions, force (if required) and decisions to be proportionate, legal,

accountable, necessary and non-discriminatory under Common Law, S117 PACE and S3
CJA.

Signature witnessed by:

MG11(t) 12/2009 20f2




| RESTRICTED_(when complete) | ‘ : MG11

Withess Statement Page 10of2

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 8. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, 8.5B

URN: L

Statement of:

Age If under 18 (if over insert “over 18"): Over 18 Occupafion:
- LR S (. B... " wn | w'

Ay O™ . .
This statement (consisting of # Pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and [ make it knowing
that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which I‘know to be false, or do
not believe to be true,

| can confirm that the Victim Personal Statement (VPS) has been explained and offered to me IZ’ tick box
| do not* wish to make a VPS at this time
I understand that | can make a VPS at any time before a sentencing hearing E’ tick box

*delete as applicable

Date: 13/11/2025

Signature:

This statemeh;:ﬁls/melation to The OVAL WINES in STEVENAGE!¥am PCSO [ o

from STEVENAGE POLICE STATION.

On Wednesday the 8th of October 2025 | was tasked by our licencing ofﬁg:er_to
have a look at DAMS case 219221/41/041025 this DAMS case is a folder of CCTV videos that
have been provided to the police by the manager at OVAL WINES STEVENAGE. | was tasked
with this at 10:00am hours on the 8th of October. | was asked by Il to look through the 11th
of July 2025 between the times of 18:00hours and 19:00 hours of the footage that was sent.

As | went onto the case there was over 300 videos that had been uploaded and various dates. | ‘
‘ started looking at clips from the 11th July 2025 which there was 36 files for the same date for

one hours’ worth of footage. when going through each piece of footage I noticed that the files

where only second long clips for the full hour between 18:00- 19:00 hours.

Below | have attached my findings of the DAMS asset, the time, length of clip and the date.

| . iier

]

“Signature: Signature Witnessed by:

Q420131 RES@\J_@{I °°mw_!




Continuation of Statement of -

| RESTRICTED (when complete) |

e

'itness Stateiient =

| ' Length Of
 Asset on DAMS | Time ' clip ' Date of Clips
I |
5983930 17:59:00 00:42 11/07/25 |
‘ 5983931 18:00:10 | 00:18 1 11/07/25 |
5083932 18:00:28 00:41 | 11/07/25
‘5983934 18:01:10 01:57 110725 |
5983035 18:01:16 00:05 ' 11/07/25
5983937 18:03:09 1 00:45 | 11/07/25
5983938 18:03:17 00:03 | 11/07/25
l 5983939 18:04:03 | 80:07. | 11/67/25-
| 5883940 18:04:36 (00007 | 11/07/25 )
5983941 | 18:04:44 00:21 11/07/25
| 5083942 18:05:00 | 00:01 11/07/25
5083943 | 18:05:07 00:02 11/07/25
! 5083944 18:05:27 00:25 11/07/25 B
5083945 1 18:05:35 00:48 | 11/07/25
| [ 5983947 18:05:52 1 00:28 11/07/125
' | 5083948 18:06:40 | 00:18 11/07/25
| 5983949 | 18:07:08 00:04 11/07/25 |
| 5983950 18:07:36 00:27 | 11/07/25
' 5983951 18:51:18 00:15 11/07/25
5983952 | 18:51:28 | 00:50 11/07/25 |
5983953 | 18:52:08 01:41 11/07/25
| 5983954 18:52:23 | 00:00 AR5
7| 5983955 | 18:52:41 | 00:12 11/07/25
5983957 | 18:53:31 | 00:40 [11/07/25 |
5983958 | 18:53:55 | 00:30 11/07/25 4{
5983959 | 18:54:01 00:17 11/07/25
5083960 | 18:55:50 00:39 11/07/25 _
5983961 18:56:02 | 00:28 11/07/25
| 5983962 18:56:40 | 00:59 11007125 |
5983963 18:57:11 00:39 11/07/25 |
5983968 | 18:57:35 00:37 11/07/25 |
| 5083969 18:58:14 | 00:24 11/07/26 |
| 5983970 18:58:29 01:48 11/07/25 ___|
| 5983972 18:50:28 00:14 11/07/25 |
5083976 18:50:45 | 00:16 11/07/25
5983981 | 19:00:25 1 00:25 | 11/87/25
| (
Slgnature: Signature Withessed by:

0412013 |

| RESTRICTED iwhen complete) |

296

MG11

':;E'go 20f3




237

'RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11

m'ithess Statement Page 3 of 3

___Continuation of Statement of i b O S ity

From the table that | have attached you can see that there is a clear gap in timings at one point
between 18:08 hours and 18:51 which is a 44 minute gap.

|| spent approximately three hours watching' ahd rewatching fhis footage as well as putting a
timeline together. This meant that | had to be stood down from my usual duties and preventing
and investigating crimes in the town centre.

] .?‘N
Signature: Signature Witnessed by:
- —Pa%e 76
0472013 RESTRIE (when complete)




MG 11(T)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B: Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

URN

Age if under Over (If over 18, insert ‘Over 18’)
18: 18

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief, and | make it knowing that, if it
is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything
which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Date: 20/09/2025

Tick if witness evidence is visually (Supply witness details on rear)
recorded

This is my statement in relation to my involvement of attendance to an incident that took
place at OVAL WINES, STEVENAGE on TUESDAY the 9th of SEPTEMBER 2025.

On TUESDAY the 9th of SEPTMEBR 2025, | was an on-duty Police Constable, based at
STEVENAGE POLICE STATION, in full uniform, donning full personal protective Police
issued equipment, on mobile patrol, under call sign [l and single crewed upon my
time of deployment.

On TUESDAY the 9th of SEPTMEBR 2025 at approximately 17:00hrs, | had attended THE
OVAL, STEVENAGE in relation to a physical altercation that had taken place. Upon my
attendance, | had activated my Police issued body worn camera and started to deal with
the incident.

Upon my dealings with two middle-eastern males who were believed to be involved in the
physical altercation, | could see that both of them were incredibly drunk. | could tell this
due to the smell of intoxicating liquor in the air, that both of their eyes were glazed, both
were slurring their words and unsteady on their feet. These are all common and consistent
signs of someone who is heavily intoxicated. When speaking to one of the middle-eastern
males, | could see that they were in possession of a plastic black bag, a bag that no other
shop other than OVAL WINES supply in the vicinity. This bag was filled with a bottle of
whiskey (unknown what brand) and 8% black cans of cider. These items again can only be
purchased from OVAL WINES. This is due to the fact that | have previously attended the
other stores in the area which all do not stock this specific type of alcohol.

Whilst dealing with the job, there was a white male in his 50s who also appeared to be
heavily intoxicated on the same can of cider that the OVAL WINES provide. His behaviour

Signature witnessed by:

MG11(t) 12/2009 10f2




MG 11(T)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

WITNESS STATEMENT

(CJ Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, ss.5A (3) (a) and 5B: Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

was that of obstructive and rude, to the point where | had to tell him to leave the area as
he was obstructing me from carrying out my lawful duties and at one point, considered
arresting him for the offence.

Eventually, | had escorted the two middle-eastern males out of the area, however the
white male was still following myself. | believe that he was doing this in order to be

obstructive and cause issues in the area. After the other males were escorted out, the
drunk white male had left the scene.

All alcohol that was consumed by everyone who was involved in this job was purchased at
OVAL WINES. This is because this alcohol cannot be found in the only other two shops
that are licenced to sell alcohol in the area (Co-Op and Morrisons).

| shall exhibit my footage under the following;

JP/01 - FOOTAGE OF DEALINGS.

Signature \

Signature witnessed by:

MG11(t) 12/2009 20f2




	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	3 LICENSING HEARINGS - PROCEDURES
	4 APPLICATION TO VARY THE SPECIFIED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR OF BOROUGH WINES (FORMALLY THE OVAL WINES), 9 THE OVAL, STEVENAGE, SG1 1HF
	Appendix A Vary DPS
	Appendix A Vary DPS App 1.1.26.pdf (p.1-6)
	Appendix A Vary DPS Consent_redacted.pdf (p.7)

	Appendix B Police Objections
	Appendix B Police Objection 12.1.26.pdf (p.1-5)
	Appendix B1 Police Objection notes 1_redacted.pdf (p.6-7)
	Appendix B2 Notes 2 - Pol Objec_redacted.pdf (p.8-15)

	Appendix C Licensing Committee Hearing Decision Notice 19.12.25_redacted
	Appendix D Premises Plan and Licence
	Appendix D - Premises Plan - Oval Wines 2025.pdf (p.1)
	Appendix D -Premises Licence - Borough Wines - 12.11.25_redacted.pdf (p.2-7)

	Appendix E - Supplementary Information from Police - Statement from Ex- Employee
	Appendix F  08.08.2025_redacted
	Appendix G - Police Communications
	Appendix G 1 - Police E Mail - No CCTV  Oval Wines - 09.09.25_redacted.pdf (p.1)
	Appendix G 2 - Statement re No CCTV - PCSO Brickett  9.9.25 - The Oval Wines_redacted.pdf (p.2-3)
	Appendix G 3 - Police Warning letter re No CCTV - 16.09.25_redacted.pdf (p.4-5)
	Appendix G4 - PC  Brown Statement 210825 - re CCTV Unavailable_redacted.pdf (p.6-7)
	Appendix G5 - PCSO Davison 08.10.2025 re - CCTV Missing 44 mins_redacted.pdf (p.8-10)

	Appendix H - PC Pickering Statement - Altercation 09.09.25_redacted


